
UNITED NATIONS 

ECONOMIC AND 
SOCIAL COUNCIL 
OFFICIAL RECORDS 

Fourteenth Session, 666th 
MEETING 

Wednesday, 30 July 1952, at 2.30 p.m. 

NEW YORK 

CONTENTS 

Page 

Elections (concluded): (d) Election of members of the Permanent Central 
Opium Board ( E/L.456, E/L.463) (concluded) . .................... 727 

Report of the Commission on Human Rights (eighth session) (E/2256, 
E/L.449, E/L.455/Rev.l, E/L.457, E/L.462) (continued) ............ 728 

President; Mr. S. Amjad ALI (Pakistan). 

Present: The representatives of the following coun­
tries: 
Argentina, Belgium, Canada, China, Cuba, Czechoslo­
vakia, Egypt, France, Iran, Mexico, Pakistan, Philip­
pines, Poland, Sweden, Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics, United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern 
Ireland, United States of America, Uruguay. 

Observers from the following countries : 
Chile, India, Lebanon, Turkey. 

The representatives of the following special­
ized agencies: 
International I~abour Organisation, United Nations 
Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization. 

Elections (concluded) : (d) Election of members 
of the Permanent Central Opium Board (E/ 
L.456, E/L.463) (concluded) 

[Agenda item 37 (d)] 

REPORT oF THE WoRKING PARTY (E/L.456) 
(concluded) 

1. l\!r. OVERTON (United Kingdom) introduced 
his delegation's draft resolution (E/L.463) and ex­
plained that its purpose was to expedite the Council's 
work by postponing the elections in order to obtain 
more information about the nominees. The draft con­
tained no proposals on the procedure for dealing with 
the item and did not involve closing the list until 15 
October 1952. 

2. :\Ir. Gc\RCIA (Philippines) could not support the 
United Kingdom draft resolution for a number of rea­
sons. The \Vorking Party had been appointed by the 
Council, and complete disregard of its work would 
amount to reversing the Council's decision. It had been 
apparent in the VVorking Party that the sixteen nomi­
nees h._1.cl adequate technic.1.l qualifications for service on 
the Board <J.nd that was the main criterion. The pas­
sage in the \Vorking Party's report to which the United 
Kingdom representative had referred related only to 

727 

candidates who had not been included in the list owing 
to the insufficient biographical data supplied. If the 
elections were postponed, the Council would be flooded 
with further applications, whereas the number already 
received was quite sufficient. The United Kingdom 
proposal to hold the elections during the resumed four­
teenth session did not take into account the fact that 
the resumed session would be short and very busy and 
some governments which had submitted detailed in­
formation about their nominees would be penalized by 
the submission of additional names. Lastly, although 
the question was important, it was not a substantive 
matter requiring much further consideration. 

3. Mr. ABDOH (Egypt), Mr. NOSEK ( Czechoslo­
vakia), Mr. AMANRICH (France), Mr. SAKSIN 
(Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) and Mr. 
WOULBROUN (Belgium) agreed that the vote should 
be taken at the current meeting and said that they would 
vote against the United Kingdom draft resolution. 

4. Mr. MU&OZ (Argentina) considered that the 
United Kingdom draft resolution was in order from the 
procedural point of view and was prepared to support 
it, on the understanding that the acquired rights of the 
existing nominees -....vould be maintained and that the 
number of additional candidates would not exceed four. 

5. Mr. OVERTON (United Kingdom) thanked the 
Argentine representative for his support of his pro­
posal, but thought the question of procedure which he 
had raised could best be settled \vhen the elections 
\vere held. 

G. 1\Ir. JOuBLANC-RIVAS (Mexico) stated that 
he would abstain from voting on the United Kingdom 
draft resolution. 

7. The PRESIDENT put the United Kingdom draft 
resolution ( E/L.463) to the vote. 

The draft resolution was rejected by 9 votes to 6, with 
3 abstentions. 

8. Mr. 1\!U;\;OZ ( Aq;entina) wished it to be made 
clear that the nominations in the ~V or king Party's re-

E/SR.666 



728 Economic and Social Council-Fourteenth Session 

port were merely recommended and that members of 
the Council could vote for other nominees as well. 

9. The PHESJDENT called for a vote to elect eight 
members of the Permanent Central Opium Board. 

A 'VOte was ta~'en by secret ballot. 
At the ino·itation of the President, Mr. Cha (China) 

and Mr. Gorse (France) acted as tellers. 
1Vumbcr of ~~alid ~~otes cast: 18 
Required majority: 10 

11/ umber of 7)otcs obtained: 
Mr. J.lcuter (France) .................. 15 
Mr. Espinosa (Philippines) ............ 14 
1\Jr. Sanchez (Chile) .................. 14 
l\Ir. May (United States of America) .... 13 
Mr. Zahar (Lebanon) ................. 13 
}I r. Rehman (India) .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 12 

Having obtained the required majority, Mr. Reuter 
(France), Mr. Espinosa (Philippines), Mr. Sanchez 
(Chile), Mr. May (United States of America), Mr. 
Zahar (Lebanon) and Mr. Rehman (India) were elected 
members of the Permanent Central Opium Board. 

10. The PRESIDENT pointed out that only six of 
the nominees had obtained the required majority. Ac­
cording to the rules of procedure, the remaining two 
members must be elected from among the four nominees 
who had obtained the next highest number of votes: 
they were Mr. Fischer (Switzerland), Sir Harry 
Greenfield (United Kingdom of Great Britain and 
Northern Ireland), JV!r. Liu (China) and Mr. Histic 
(Yugoslavia). 

11. He called for a vote to elect two more members. 
A vote was taken by secret ballot. 

Number of ·valid ""'ofes cast: 18 
Required majority: 10 

Number of votes obtained: 
Sir Harry Greenfield (United Kingdom 

of Great Britain and Northern Ireland) 11 
Hm 1inq obtained the required majority) Sir Harry 

Greenfield (United Kingdom of Great Britain and 
N orthcrn Ireland) ·was elected a tJumber of the Penna­
nent Central Opium Board. 

12. The PRESIDENT called for a vote to elect the 
remaining member of the Permanent Central Opium 
Board. 

A ''ate "'as taken by secret ballot. 
Number of 'l'alid ·uotes cast: 18 
Required fnajority: 10 

Jl.hnnbcr of ""'otes ohtaincd: 
Mr. Fischer (Switzerland) ............ 10 

Hm·inq obtained the required majority) Mr. Fischer 
(Switzerland) was elected a member of the Permanent 
Centra/ Opium Board. 

Report of the Commission on Human Rig-hts 
(eighth session) (E/22.~6, E/L.449, E/L.455/ 
Rev.l, E/L.457, E/L.462) (continued) 

[Agenda item 12] 

DRAFT RESOLUTION C (E/2256, annex V) (continued) 

13. 1\Tr. BOHATYNSK! (Poland) stated that his 
delegation fully shared the views embodied in the USSR 
draft resolution (E/L.457) and felt strongly about the 

principle of adopting a single covenant. The fact that 
it was not alone in holding that view had been shown 
clear! y since the fifth session of the General Assembly. 
Representatives from different continents and with dif· 
ferent backgrounds had supported the principle of unity, 
as \vas shown by the statements of the representatives 
of Chile, ::\Icxico, Egypt, Iraq, J ndia, Saudi Arabia 
and S_yria at three consecutive meetings of the Third 
Committee during the fifth session of the Assemhly.1 

It was essential that those pleas for a single covenant, 
ba:;ccl on the interconncxion and interdependence of 
civil and political rights and economic, social and cul­
tural rights, should be recognized. 

14. The ya]iclity of that Yiew had been shown during 
the eighth session of the Commission on 1-! nnnn RiRhts. 
It was too late for the United States delegation to utter 
meaningless general slogans anJ oppose the guarantees 
of basic economic, social and cultural rights. Political 
phrases could not conceal the existence of poverty and 
illiteracy from the masses of the people. The United 
Kingdom representative had spoken that morning of the 
difficulty of implementing one covenant, but when speak­
ing of implementation, the United States and United 
Kingdom delegations had in mind the creation of all­
pmverful artificial and illegal organs to interfere in the 
internal affairs of other States. If their attempts were 
successful, international relations would be seriously 
impaired and existing differences would be aggravated. 

IS. In view of those considerations, his delegation 
would support the USSR resolution, which called for a 
single covenant containing clear definitions and guaran­
tees of State responsibility. 

16. Mr. LUBIN (United States of America) regretted 
that three delegations had seen fit to lower the tone of 
the debate on the clear issue of whether or not the 
General Assembly should be asked to reconsider its 
decision (General Assembly resolution 543 (VI)). 

17. His delegation had always considered that two 
covenants should be drafted, for reasons that had been 
well stated by the representatives of Cuba and Uruguay, 
as well as by other delegations. He was convinced that 
the General Assemblv should not be asked to reconsider 
its decision. He emPhasized that the General Assembly 
at its sixth session had requested the Commission on 
Human Rights to submit the two covenants to the 
Assembly simultaneously, and that they might be 
opened for signature at the same time. 

18. His delegation would vote against the USSR draft 
resolution (E/L.457). 

19. Mr. CHENG PAONAN (China) said that his 
delegation would vote for the joint draft resolution sub­
mitted by the Philippines, Sweden and the United States 
(E/L.449), since it was obvious that more nations 
would be able to accede to and ratify at least one of two 
covenants than could ratify a sing~Je instrument. The 
same argument applied to implementation clauses. 

20. His delegation considered that the article on self­
determination, which referred to a collective, rather 
than an individual right, would be out of place in both 
covenants and had suggested in the Commission on 

1 See Official Records of the General Assl'ntb!y, Fifth Ses­
sion, Third Committee, 297th, 298th and 299th meetings. 



666th Meeting-30 July 1952 729 

Human Rights that a separate covenant on the right of 
peoples to self-determination should be drafted. 

21. He thought that draft resolutions A and B in the 
report of the Commission on Human Rights (E/2256, 
annex V) represented a step in the right direction and 
\vould vote for them. 

22. Mr. SAKSIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub­
lics) wished to reply to the representatives who had 
spoken against the drafting of the single covenant and 
had based their arguments on procedural, rather than 
substantive, considerations. 

23. The Cuban representative had stated ( 665th meet­
ing) that the Council could not alter the General 
Assembly resolution. Although that was true, the 
proposal in the USSR draft resolution consisted in re­
questing the General Assembly to reconsider its reso­
lution 54.l (VI). General Assembly resolution 421 E 
(V) had been reconsidered at the sixth session, at the 
instigation of the Cnitcd States, and the original de­
cision to draft a single covenant had thus been reversed. 
The Cuban delegation had raised no objection to the 
reconsideration at the time and it therefore seemed that 
its protest vvas based on the fact that the current pro­
posal had been moved by the USSR. 

24. Certain representatives had said that the adoption 
of the USSR proposal would delay the Commission's 
work of preparing the covenant. That argument was 
unfounded, since much work had been done on the basis 
of the principle of a single covenant during the two and 
a half years before the reversal of the original General 
Assembly decision (Assembly resolution 421 E (V) ). 
Had it not been for the lengthy and unnecessary discus­
sions on the rival merits of the two principles, the Com­
mission would have completed its work long since. 
Moreover, it was obviously easier to work on a single 
text than on two instruments, with regard to both the 
basic text and the implementation clauses. 

25. In the light of those considerations, he appealed to 
the Council to take the legal decision embodied in the 
USSR draft resolution (E/L.457). 

26. Mr. NU:\:EZ PORTUO'lDO (Cuba) denied that 
he had spoken against the draft resolution (E/L.457) 
merely because it had been submitted by the USSR. His 
delegation was perfectly prepared to accept a Polish 
draft resolution ( E/L.462), with one small amendment 
(E/L.464). l\loreover, Cuba had not been a member 
of the Economic and Social Council in 1950. when the 
Council had requested the General Assembly to reverse 
its decision. The Cuban delegation was therefore con­
sistent in its view that the USSR proposal should not 
have been submitted to the Council, but directly to the 
General Assembly. 

27. Mr. STERNER (Sweden) questioned the advisa­
bility of including an article on the right to self-determi­
nation in the covenants. Although his delegation was in 
favour of the principle of self-determination, it raised 
the question whether the right should not be stated in a 
different kind of document. 

28. The PRESIDENT called for a vote on the joint 
draft resolution submitted by the Philippines, Sweden 
and the United States (E/L.449) and pointed out that, 
if the proposal was adopted, the USSR draft resolu-

tion ( E/L.457) would not automatically become re­
dundant. 

The joint draft resolution was adopted by 11 votes to 
3~ 'luith 4 abstentions. 

29. Mr. SCHEYVEN (Belgium) said that the 
Belgian vote in favour of the joint draft resolution 
should not be taken to mean that his country approved 
the work of the Commission on Human Rights. On 
the contrary, as he would explain later in the debate, 
some provisions of the covenant called for explicit reser­
vations on the part of the Belgian Government. 

30. Mr. SAKSIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub­
lics) explained that he had voted against the joint draft 
resolution because it referred to two covenants, whereas 
his delegation adhered to the principle of a single cove­
nant. He wished to make it clear, however, that the 
USSR hoped the Commission would complete its work 
at its next session, provided that a single covenant was 
at issue. 

31. The PRESIDENT put to the vote the USSR 
draft resolution (E/L.457). 

The draft resolution was rejected by 10 votes to 6, 
'lt•ith 2 abstentions. 

DR,\FT RESOLl.'TIONS A AND B (E/2256, annex V) 

32. Sir Gladwyn JEBB (United Kingdom) empha­
sized that the views he would express reflected a firm 
position of principle, although they would probably be 
shared only by a minority in the Council. 

33. The two draft resolutions placed before the Coun­
cil by its Commission on Human Rights ( E/2256, an­
nex V, draft resolutions A and B) had been commended 
for adoption presumably in compliance with paragraph 
2 of General Assembly resolution 545 (VI). Under 
paragraph 1 of the same resolution, the Commission had 
prepared the text of an article on the right of peoples 
and nations to self-determination for inclusion in the 
two covenants. The vote on the joint draft resolution 
(E/L.449) appeared to indicate, however, that the 
article would not be submitted to the General Assembly 
for approval until the Commission had completed all its 
work on the covenants. In the circumstances, it was un­
necessary for the Council to adopt draft resolutions A 
and Band to submit them to the General Assembly at its 
seventh session, for they actually reproduced the gist 
of the article on self-determination in a context of 
tendentious material which was unjustified, injurious 
and contrary to common sense and to the provisions of 
the United Nations Charter. It would indeed be a curi­
ous procedure to submit for the General Assembly's 
approval a compressed version of a single, isolated 
article intended for inclusion in the two covenants, be­
fore the Assembly had had an opportunity to examine 
the covenants in their entirety. It would undoubtedly 
entail a lengthy debate on the principle of self-deter­
mination at the seventh session of the Assembly and 
another such wrangle at the eighth session when the 
full covenants came up for consideration. Thus, on 
purely technical grounds, the United Kingdom could 
not accept draft resolutions A and B. 

34. The United King-dom Government fully supported 
the principle of self-determination as a general guide 
to political action. It had demonstrated that fact by 
supporting inclusion, in Articles 1 and 55 of the Charter, 



730 Economic and Social Conncil-Fourteenth Session 

of reference to that principle, and it believed that its 
general acceptance was in harmony with the provisions 
of Chapter XI of the Charter, under which Member 
States bearing responsibility for the administration of 
Non-Self-Governing Territories accepted as a sacred 
trust the obligation to promote the development of free 
political institutions with a view to eventual self-gov­
ernment £or those territories. The principle was also 
reflected in Chapter XII (Article 76) in connexion 
with the International Trusteeship System. It was 
significant, however, that in both chapters dealing with 
Non-Self-Governing and Trust Territories, the phrase 
"self-determination of peoples" was not used, doubtless 
because some degree of precision was aimed at by the 
drafters of those chapters. The phrase, however, defted 
definition to such an extent as to make it inappropriate 
as an enforceable provision in legally binding documents 
such as the covenants. As the United Kingdom repre­
sentative in the Commission on Human Rights had 
pointed out, an attempt to reach the necessary precise 
definition even of the word "peoples" would be futile. 
Moreoyer, under any definition that term could be 
applied to racial minorities within a sovereign State; 
it was very doubtful that any State would welcome such 
a development. Thus, the inclusion in a covenant of a 
provision ensuring to peoples the right of self-deter­
mination was likely to give rise to varying interpreta­
tions and might conceivably encourage separatist or 
subversive movements. To those who contended that 
a restatement of the principle, despite the difficulty in 
defining its terms, would strengthen the Charter, he 
would reply that his Government recognized machinery 
for that purpose in Chapter XVIII, which laid down 
procedure for amendnwnt of the Charter. He deplored 
the tendency manifested at the last session of the Com­
mission on· Human Rights to seek amendment of the 
Charter by indirect methods. 

35. The Cnited Kingdom strongly protested against 
the preatnble of draft resolution A because, taken in its 
context, it suggested that the inhabitants of aU Non­
Self-Governing Territories were being held in a state 
of slaven'. As all Member States >vere resolved to 
abolish sfavery wherever it existed, the obvious infer­
ence was that all Non-Self-Governing Territories, in­
cluding the Trust Territories, must immediately become 
free, that the Administering Authorities should with­
draw forthwith and that the people should be left to 
cope with the anarchy which would ensue in the ma­
jority of those territories. Presumably, therefore, the 
supporters of draft resolution A favoured action by the 
Administering Authorities which would flagrantly vio­
late their obligations under the Charter and repudiate 
the sacred trust they had assunwd tovvarrls the peoples 
\vhom they were leading tow;1rds self-government and 
ultimate ind('pcndence. Such irresponsibility on the 
part of the A(lministering Powers would be unworthy 
of the United Nations. 

36. The major premise of the p:1rtise1ns of draft resolu­
tion A ,yas utterly false: the 1)C'opks in dependent terri­
tories '\Tre f'w more free th1n ~hP inclcpcncl.ent and 
sovereign peoples of many ~frmhr>r StatPs. Under many 
forms of authoritrtrian regimes. t hf' 1111-'.;s of the popula­
tion \Vas clcnird the most elementary civil and political 
rights; persons \vith "hcrc<icd" ,·iews were removed 
to concentration camps; \Vhole groups were condemned 

as unorthodox by central political authorities and trans­
planted to remote prisons \Vhere the majority perished. 
Nothing resembling those conditions had occurred in 
any dependent territory in recent years. On the con­
trary, in most, freedom of expression and freedom of 
political association were increasing as the territory 
progressed towards self-government and independence. 
The removal of the central administrative authority 
before the area had reached a level of development 
which would permit it to form and conduct a govern­
ment along democratic lines might easily result in the 
introduction of slavery conditions. It would certainly 
bring about a struggle for power, the outcome of which 
might be a dictatorship or other form of autocracy 
which most Member States would deplore. The pleb­
iscite called for in paragraph 2 of draft resolution A, if 
instituted under the conditions prevailing in most de­
pendent territories, would have that result or, alterna­
tively, would promote a state of total anarchy. 

37. Nevertheless, should the General Assembly adopt 
the text recommended in draft resolution A, the grave 
consequences envisaged would not come about, if only 
because the Administering Powers would not heed its 
provisions. But it \vould have the effect of encouraging 
irresponsible minorities in some Non-Self-Governing 
Territories and of widening the gap behvcen the Ad­
ministering Powers and the non-administering Powers. 
There were many countries with ethnic minorities under 
the rule of racially alien people-a condition which his 
delegation might privately regard as unsatisfactory-but 
he would not by reference to such instances risk stirring 
up internal disturbance and group hatreds, a result 
clearly incompatible with the purposes of the United 
Nations. 

38. Draft resolution B was unacceptable to the United 
Kingdom because it discriminated against Member 
States responsible for the administration of Non-Self­
Governing Territories by demanding information on the 
political development of those territories and did not 
request similar information regarding other territories. 
Yet, there were non-self-governing "peoples" in areas 
other than the Non-Self-Governing and Trust Terri­
tories. Moreover, the draft resolution represented an­
other attempt to amend the Charter by the devious 
method of distorting the meaning and intention of 
Article 73 e. 

39. Article 7.1 e omittf'd the adiective "political" in 
the enumeration of the types of information to be sub­
mitted by States responsible for Non-Self-Governing 
Territories. The omission was deliberate and the con­
tention that the spirit of the Charter required the trans­
mission of data on political dcvrlopment \Vas not valid. 
The United Kingdom was further opposrd to the rele­
vant prm.·ision in clr:1ft ff'SOlution B hecattSC' it W<lS COn­
vinced that thE' exr1.mination and discussion in the United 
Nations of inform~tion of a political nature regarding 
the dependent territories wrmld confuse ordnlv \onsti­
tntional proryrcss and adversely affC"ct thE' admittedly 
delic8tC' rebtionshin hC'tween the colonial administr;1tion 
and the pC'ople. For it would in realitv rccw~-niz-::- the 
rights of others to intprfcrC' in directing th:1t nro~ress and 
to- share in the clisclnr(OC' of duties undt:rtakcn exclu­
sively by the 1Tnitr(t Kinn:rlom Government. On the 
other hand, such infnrnntion was fully pnh\ic.;}F·d and 
freely discussed in P;tr\ianwnt. While it \Vas available, 



666th Meeting-30 July 1952 731 

therefore, to those interested, the United Kingdom was 
not obliged to submit it officially to the scrutiny of other 
Member States and discussion in the United Nations. 
Nothing \vould induce his Government to submit such 
information. 

40. The United Kingdom had an outstanding liLeral 
record in colonial matters ; particularly in recent years, 
a number of States both within and without the British 
Commonwealth had achieved full independence with 
the full consent and co-operation of the United Kingdom 
Government. The process would continue, but it was of 
paramount importance that it should be based on real 
freedom rooted in education, trained administrators and 
the general ability of the body politic to absorb and 
make effective use of modern techniques. It was not 
enough to strive towards total independence regardless 
of its nature. The only worth-while goal was good 
independence. To assert the contrary was tantamount 
to saying that the Latvians were better off spiritually, 
morally and even economically than the people, for 
example, of the Gold Coast or Nigeria. That was mani­
festly absurd, and asserted only by those who had a 
vested interest in propagating slavery by the simple 
method of calling it freedom. 

41. The United Kingdom welcomed the emergence of 
independent peoples, the spread of democratic concep­
tions, and the opening of new opportunities to less 
fortunate peoples for the enjoyment of a better life, but 
those prospects must not be wrecked by clinging to a 
principle which was valid only if followed in conjunc­
tion with other equally fundamental principles. The 
Administering and non-administering Powers should 
work together to elaborate sound liberal policies for the 
benefit of the poverty-stricken and oppressed throughout 
the world, rather than embark on a course which threat­
ened to plunge them into greater poverty and real op­
pression. 

42. For all those reasons, the United Kingdom would 
vote against draft resolutions A and B (E/2256, 
annex V). 

4.3. The PRESIDENT announced that the represen­
tatives of India and Lebanon, who were present as 
observers, had asked to participate in the discussion. 
He invited the representative of India to make a state­
ment. 

44. Mr. BANERJEE (India) affirmed the support of 
his delegation for the two draft resolutions recommended 
hy the Comnli:.;sion on 1-l unnn l~ights for the Conncil's 
approval, in implementation of paragraph 2 of General 
Assembly resolution 545 (VI). He recalled that India 
had taken the initiative in sponsoring the proposal to 
insert an article on self-determination in the covenants 
and draft re:;olution A was based on that proposal. The 
recommend::ttions embodied in draft resolutions A and 
B \Vere realistic and simple; the adoption of that clear 
statement of principles would benefit all peoples seeking 
the rig-ht of ,c.-elf-d"tcrmination <',Pel senT as ~·nidancc 
for hoth the /\dministering Pmvers and the Non-Self­
Governing and Trust Territories. 

45. India could not agree with those delegations which 
opposed the incluslon in the covenant of the principle 
of self-determination on the grounds that the word 
"self-determination" had intentiOnally been omitted from 
Chapter XI of the United Nations Charter because it 

meant "self-government" in relation to the Non-Self­
Governing Territories and hence was not applicable to 
them. That interpretation was refuted by the first 
paragraph of Article 76, which unequivocally stated that 
all the objectives laid down in the subsequent para­
graphs should be "in accordance with the purposes of 
the L'nited Nations laid down in Article 1 of the present 
Charter". Since Article I explicitly proclaimed the 
prit1ciple of respect for the self-determination of peoples, 
Article 76, read in context, clearly set the self-determina­
tion of peoples as a basic objective of the Trusteeship 
System. [v1oreover, the express reference to the pur­
poses of the United Nations, one of which was self­
determination, extended the application of Article 76 
to both Trust and Non-Self-Governing Territories. The 
further mention of independence in that Article, despite 
its omission from Article 73, showed that the objective 
of self-government included the concept of self-deter­
mination. 

46. As it stood, draft resolution A related exclusively 
to !\!ember States of the United Nations. India would 
extend its application to non-member States having 
trusteeship agreements with the United Nations in the 
interest of a universal and uniform application of the 
principles of self-determination. The question of self­
determination was of such major importance that it 
should be dealt with only by the highest United Nations 
body, the General Assembly. Any attempt to refer it 
for study to other organs-the specialized agencies had 
been suggested-would have the effect of burying it 
and would be harmful to world peace. The General 
Assembly could invite assistance from the specialized 
agencies if it wished. Furthermore, the question of 
self-determination should not be confused with the 
problem of minorities. The interests of the latter were 
protected in the draft covenant and India supported the 
adoption and application of the relevant article. 

47. The principal objective of the recommendations 
concerning self-determination was neither to expose nor 
to embarrass the colonial Powers. However benevolent 
their rule, it \vas no substitute for self-government. The 
recommendations were intended to create conditions 
which would inspire faith and offer opportunity to non­
self-governing peoples and afford clear guidance to the 
Administering Powers. The latter "\Vere obligated to 
promote the advance of all dependent territories towards 
self-government; in their own self-interest, they must 
realize that peace could come only when peoples were 
free and enjoyed security and equal opportunities with 
other peoples. The vast masses of Asia and Africa, 
stirred by new and powerful urges, were demanding 
that right to a better life and clamouring for recognition 
of their rightful place in the world. They should not 
be feared; on the contrary, they should be welcomed 
into the family of free nations, for only with their help 
conic! the purposes and principles of the Charter be 
fulfilled. 

48. In view of the General Assemblv's clear instruction 
1n the ( ·nn1Jni:;:;ion on Pnman Rigl;ts (resolution 545 
(\:1) p:~r~,,~,·;~ph 2) to s11hrnit i:..; rcconmv:mhtions on 
self-determination to the Assemblv at its sen'nth ses­
sion, the Council was not authorized to amend or in 
any way replace draft resolutions A and D. The amend­
ments submitted (E/L.455/Rev.l) should therefore not 
be considered. Draft resolutions A and l3 should be 



732 Economic and Social Council-Fourteenth Session 

transmitted to the General Assembly for its considera­
tion as proposed in the Polish draft resolution (E/ 
L.462). 

49. l\Ir. BORATYNSKI (Poland) considered it un­
necessary to explain at length the Polish draft resolu­
tion (E/L.462), which merely sought to implement 
resolution 545 (VI) of the General Assembly, request­
ing the Commission on Human l{ights to prepare recom­
mendations concerning international respect for the 
self-detcrmin::!tion of peoples and submit them to the 
General Assembly at its seventh session. In compliance 
with that directive, the Commission on Human Rights 
had de,·oted a substantial part of its eighth session to 
the preparation of recommendations on self-determina­
tion of peoples. It would be impossible for the Economic 
and Social Council in the closinP" davs of its session to 
reopen the question and fornw'late -new recommenda­
tions. J\Ioreover, it \Vas significant that the General 
Assembly had called upon the Commission on Human 
Rights, the body of specialists which it thought best 
equipped in the matter, to prepare the recommendations 
in question. In the light of the General Assembly's 
resolution, the Economic and Social Council was not 
competent to deliberate upon or amend the recommenda­
tions of the Commission on Human Rights and should 
confine its action to the transmission of those recom­
mendations to the General Assembly, as proposed in 
the Polish draft resolution. 

SO. The Cuban amendment (E/L.464) to the Polish 
draft resolution was unacceptable because the addition 
of the words "without comment" might give the im­
pression that comments on the recommendations had 
been withheld. In effect that amendment would detract 
from the force of the recommendations of the Commis­
sion on Human Rights. 

51. It was obvious that the United Kingdom had had 
weighty reasons for sending to a Council meeting deal­
ing with a relatively minor question its permanent rep­
resentative on the Security Council, more generally 
associated with important political and dinlom:1tic dis­
cussions. It was fortunate that the United Kingdom 
was in the minority in considering that the recommenda­
tions of the Commission on Human Rights on self­
determination of peoples were dang-erous to the future 
of the United Nations. Despite the fullest expression 
of those views by the United Kingdom representative in 
the Commission on Human Rights. it was noteworthy 
that a substantial majority had supported the recom­
mendations which were before the Council. 

52. Paragraph 1 of recommendation A (E/2256, para­
graph 91), calling for respect for the principle of self­
determination, was essentially a summary of a numher 
of provisions of the Charter of the United Nations and 
conld hardly be seriously qualified as dangerous. The 
second paragraph, as well as recommendation B. could 
hardly be considered inconsistent with the Charter, 
which recognized that the interests of the inhabitants of 
Non-Self-Governing Territories were paramount and 
ca11ed for the advancement of the inhahitants of Tntst 
Territories. The opposition of the United Kingdom 
delegation in the case under consideration was merely 
an additional example of its consistent policy of ob­
structing all measures for the advancement of the in­
habitants of Non-Self-Governing and Trust Territories. 

53. The General Assembly had given the Commission 
on .Human Rights t\vo distinct assignments in con­
nexwn with self-determination: to include an article on 
the subject in the covenant and to prepare and submit 
recommendations concerning respect for self -determina­
tion to the General Assembly at its next session. A clear 
distinction must be made between those two tasks. 
Therefore the opinion of the United Kingdom repre­
sentative that draft resolutions A and B should not be 
submitted to the General Assembly until work on the 
cO\·enants had hccn completed w:-~.s lor:~ically and legally 
unsound. 

54. :\Jr. f\G[:EZ PORTUONDO (Cuba I explained, 
;nth regard to the Cuban amendment (E/L.464) to 
the Polish draft resolution, that the transmission of the 
recommendations of the Cornmission on Human Rights 
to the General Assemhly '\vithout comment" "\vas in 
the opi.nion of the Cuban delegation a faithful imple­
mentatiOn of the General Assembly directive that the 
Commission should prepare and transmit its recom­
mendations direct to the Assembly. It would therefore 
be inappropriate for the Council to express any opinions 
or make any comments on the recommendations. 

55. The Cuban amendment strengthened rather than 
weakened the Polish draft resolution and the words 
"without comment" could not be construed as detri­
mental to the value of the Commission's recommenda­
tion. 

56. In its di;;;cussion of self-determination, the General 
Assembly might \vish to consider the strange phenomena 
that many peoples were striving for self-determination 
and self-government for the first time while traditionally 
sovereign and independent States were being ruled by 
small groups seeking to transform them into colonies. 

57. Mr. JUVIGNY (France) noted that the Commis­
sion on Human Rights had been instructed by the 
General Assembly to prepare two draft covenants on 
human rights and to include the right of self-determina­
tion in both covenants. The French delegation had 
opposed the inclusion of that right in the covenants 
as a matter of principle, but it felt that even advocates 
of the inclusion of such an article would agree that in 
the final analvsis the recommendations on self-deter­
mination conStituted measures of implementation of 
the right of self-determination. In view of the fact that 
the drafting of the two covenants had not been com­
pleted, and th;:~t fundamental provisions were still lack­
ing, it would be impossible at that stage to adopt any 
decision regarding implementation of a single right. 

58. The procedure contemplated was an implicit 
admission that the right of self-determination was out 
of place in the covenants because it was to be given 
special treatment ami because special measur:-es of imple­
mentation were to he hastily adopted. In view of the fact 
that the General Assembly had in a single resolution 
linked the covf'nant on human rights, the article on the 
right of sclf-cktermination and action on recommenda­
tions. it was 111:111ifest that no appropriate decision could 
be reachrd until the Commission on I-I uman Rights had 
completerl. its work. The \visest procedure wonld be 
meamvhile to send the texts back to the Commission, 
thereby excluding the transmission of the draft recom­
mendations to the General Assembly at that stage. 



666th Meeting-30 July 1952 733 

59. As a majority in the Council might not share that 
view, the French delegation wished to summarize the 
position of the French Government on the problem as 
a whole. In its opinion the Charter contained no pro­
visions giving the Economic and Social Council compe­
tence to deal with the highly political subject of the right 
of self-determination of peoples. Any such interpreta­
tion would tend to destroy the careful and delicate bal­
ance of powers set forth in the Charter. 

60. The concept of human rights, as generally accepted, 
encompassed individual rights and collective rights 
such as the right of association and the right to join trade 
unions, which were an extension and a development 
of individual rights. In that sense the Economic and 
Social Council was competent to deal with human rights. 
The concept of human rights could not, however, be 
amplified to include the rights and duties of political 
entities and the regulation of their relations under public 
international law. Rights which did not involve rela­
tionships between the individual and public authority 
could not be regarded as human rights unless all rights 
were accepted as human rights. So controversial a 
thesis could not be accepted without seriously under­
mining the structure and foundations of the United 
Nations and the basic principles of the Charter. The 
Economic and Social Council could not on that basis 
adopt even a simple decision transmitting recommenda­
tions to the General Assembly. 

61. The recommendations themselves reflected a simi­
lar confusion on basic concepts of competence and gave 
evidence of ineffective results. In addition, the text of 
the recommendations was inconsistent with the provi­
sions of the Charter. 

62. In the first place, the recommendations had been 
drafted by an organ which was not legally and techni­
cally equipped to deal with the problem, or at any rate 
was not fitted to deal with it alone. The French dele­
gation's proposal that serious studies should be under­
taken by appropriate bodies such as the International 
Law Commission, the United Nations Educational, 
Scientific and Cultural Organization and the Sub­
Commission on Prevention of Discrimination and Pro­
tection of Minorities, had been rejected in the Com­
mission and recommendations had been hastily prepared 
involving vague and poorly defined concepts in relation 
to a right which had never been deemed to constitute 
an element of positive law. At that stage the French 
delegation was unable to consider recommendations pre­
pared in such circumstances, divorced from the consid­
eration of the principle which they were intended to 
implement. 

63. In its existing form the statement of the right of 
self-determination of peoples contravened the principle 
and the rules of the United Nations Charter. Article I, 
paragraph 2, of the Charter mentioned the right of self­
determination of peoples in connexion with a statement 
that one of the purposes of the United Nations was to 
develop friendly relations among nations. In that text 
the \vord "peoples" was synonymous with "nations" 
and signified a group forming a political unit within a 
State under the authority of a government. Respect for 
human rights and fundamental freedoms was set forth in 
paragraph 3 as a separate objective on a different plane. 
Article 2 provided that in pursuit of the purposes stated 

in Article 1, Members of the United Nations should 
respect the territorial integrity and political independ­
ence of States-two concepts which were not affected 
by the equal rights and self-determination of peoples 
referred to in the preceding article. It was clear that 
in the international field. if peoples were to be opposed 
to their nations, their States and their governments, 
the fundamental provisions of the Charter relating to 
the sovereignty, integrity and independence of f./[ember 
States would be contravened and the right of secession 
of any segment of a federal or unitary State setting itself 
up as a people and requesting the right of self-determina­
tion would be proclaimed. The United Nations would 
then be initiating machinery for political disintegration 
instead of ensuring respect for the integrity of States. 

64. Moreover. the right of self-determination of 
peoples, when it was not fused with freedom of nations 
and States, as in the Charter, had never entered into 
positive international law. The right of self-determina­
meant that the aspirations of peoples would be taken 
into consideration, to the extent that they could be 
ascertained clearly in the preparation of new rules of 
posith-e international law such as peace treaties chang­
ing the map of States. In the realm of political decisions, 
the concept of people \Vas an element \vhich played a 
role jointly \Vith other principles and often in compe­
tition with higher interests, such as the cause of peace. 
In some cases positive international law prescribed limits 
on the right of self-determination which were justified 
by the interests of the international community. In the 
past many requests for territorial union had not been 
implemented because they constituted a threat to the 
peace or would impair friendly relations among States. 
Thus the right of self-determination was not a principle 
of positive law but a political principle implemented by 
general political organs within the field of their compe­
tence. 

65. If the concept of peoples was separated from the 
concept of nations, it became impossible to arrive at a 
juridical definition of people. Such lack of precision 
was admissible in the case of a political ideal endorsed 
bv France but it \vould Le inadmissible in the case of 
i1;1plemcntation of recommendations im·olving the rights 
of people to self-determination. 

66. In the text the right of self-determination was in 
no instance made subordinate to higher principles. 
Omission of so essential an element revealed that no 
thought h:td been gi·n'n to the tran.''.ccndcntal require­
ments of the peaceful existence of the international 
community. Nor had consideration been given to the 
primacy of the development of individual rights and of 
respect £or those rights. From the point of view of human 
rights, the only purpose of a legal instrument must 
be to ensure full development and respect for the rights 
of the inJiyiclual. Yet the drafts under consideration 
contained no guarantee against active minorities which 
often seized power under the guise of ensuring self­
determination and destroved or limited individual free­
doms which the population had previously enjoyed. The 
era of Hitler's domination furnished a vivid example of 
that point. 

67. Finally, the proposed text must not show any dis­
crimination towards States responsible for the adminis­
tration of Non-Self-Governing Territories. The Charter 



734 Economic and Social Council-Fourteenth Session 

had made no exceptions to the sovereign equality, terri­
torial integrity and political independence of States and 
had required the responsible authorities only to fulfil 
the legal obligation of submitting information under 
Article 73 e. The French Government would never 
agree to provisions which violated the universal char­
acter of the obligations imposed on States, and would 
not agree to recommendations which went beyond the 

Printed in U.S.A. 

Charter, were inconsistent with its guiding principles 
and were contrary to the fundamental principle of equal 
treatment of States. The French delegation would fol­
low a consistent policy of opposing the transmission of 
the recommendations of the Commission on Human 
Rights to the General Assembly. 

The meeting rose at 5.55 p.m. 

71722-September 1952-2,850 




